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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (ff known) PHYSICAL ARFEARANCE

St. John's Church is one of six remaining colonial churches in Virginia
built in the shape of a Latin cross. The building measures about seventy-
five feet east to west, and approximately sixty feet north to south. The
fine quality brick walls are laid in Flemish bond with glazed headers above
the beveled water table and English bond below. Rubbed brick is found
around all the semicircular arched windows, the round windows in each of

the gable ends, andat all the cormers. All three entrances (north, south
and west) to the building apparently had brick pediments, but these have
been removed and the entrances are now covered by modern brick vestibules.

A brick tower with a wooden belfry was added to the west end in 1762, but wa
removed circa 1870. The present massive and somewhat awkwardly placed brick
tower in the northeast corner of the building was added in 1901. Except

for the walls themselves, all the remaining fabric in the church dates from
after 1870. The present interior appointments, especially the stained glass
windows, are fine quality late-nineteenth and early-twentieth century

work.

Surrounding the church i8 a picturesque graveyard with stoneg bearing the
nameg of many of the old families in the area. At least two of the stones
date from the colonial period.
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The present St. John's,-dr Elizabeth City Parish Church as it was originally
named, is the fourth building to serve this ancient parish, said to be the
oldest active parish of the Anglican Church in America. The first church,
‘known as' Kecoughtan Church, was erected circa 1613-16 in the vicinity of
what is now Hampton Institute. The second and third churches, erected in
1624 and 1667 respectively, were located nearer the present church. In
1727 the governor decided that a new church should be erected within the
city of Hampton, and a court order directed certain men "to lay off an

acre and a half of ground at the upper end of Queen Street for the building
of a church thereon." The present church was completed circa 1728.

As with most of Virginia's colonial churches, 5t. John's has suffered con-
siderably from the wars which have plagued the Tidewater area. The
building was slightly damaged during the British bombardment of Hampton
in 1775. During the War of 1812, it was ransacked by British troops and
was used as a barracks. The British so damaged the building that little
was left except the walls and the roof. In 1830 the church received a
thorough renovation and was reconsecrated by Bishop Moore as St. John's
Church. In 1861 Confederate forces burned the church along with the

rest of Hampton, so a second renovation was required following the War
Between the States.

Although the brick walls are the omly remaining original portions of the
church, they survive as a classic example of ‘early-eighteenth century
Virginia brickwork. The existing Victorian interior appointments are of
fine quality and are befitting for the venerable walls in which they are
placed.

1t should be noted that St, John's English communion silver has been in
uge longer than any other in America. The London chalice and two patens,
dating from 1618-19, were originally given to St. Mary's, Smith's Hundred,
in Charles City County and were bestowed upon Elizabeth City Parish later
in the century. St. John's also owns a Breeches Bible dated 1599.
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